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3. What was the house made of? Was it & log house?
A. Mo. It was shingles, & by 478 in the walls.
0. Do you remesmber what they wused to insulate the house?

Ae I think what they used most often was this building paper and they
put these shingles on both sides.

f. MWere the shingles on the inside of the house?

fi. Yes., These were there just on the sdge to hold the paper there,
vo know. Agaeinst the  fbwo-by-fowrs.

. In the walls, did they ever put buckwheat hulls in there?
fa Moy, T ocan bt remember that.

G In some places bthey used to.

A Tt was already built sort of.

B, Oh, I ses. It was not built by vouwr Ffamily, bubt, it was built by
somenne el e’

&. 1 think mavbe my grandfather built it. When I was born it was
alresady bthere.

. Bomsbimss when vou change & window around o something like thatb
vou get to ses what is in there.

M. A T oaald, T owas two vesrs old when 1T left there. I dicdn’t go
back for three or fow yveare when we moved fwther down by the cross
road down by that little hill over there. There is a building there
where one roof goes this way and ancother goes this wav.

G, The public building?

Ao Mo. Used to be Thibeault farms there. Now I don't kEnow who owns
it. Faul Guerrette was the last one who owned it, and is still
thera.

. Mow, vou left St Agaths to come here when vou were how old?

. T think 1922. I was going to be bwelve.

G Boy, vow had gone to school in 8b. Agatha?

A. Ohy ves.

. Did vouw go to the convent?

Ay

Ao Moy, we had a little school there all eight grades.
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@. Oh, really.

&, We only had one teacher and we took French and English.  We
transl ated bobh.

e Wow. Becauss bthere were a lobt of schools back then that didn’t
wartt to have too much French. Bub they had that there. Were they
Lay teachers or were they nuns?

A. lay teschers. Concession.

G, And what concessioin was bhat?

A, Well, there were three rows and there was & Bouwchard at the top
ore. The mext one T don't know.  Then the one below that was where
Desrosiers, The Guerettes and Martins lived thers.

. Did they have & name for the concession?

B, A werrd that means "in the middle".

G, Ohy, so yvou had the high road, the low road, and yvouws was in the
micddle.

P Yes, that ' s right.

e MHow large waﬁ vonar Fami Ly

Aa We were ten in &ll, bult, thres died s0 now we are seven.

. Who were vowr parents?  What werse yvowr parents’ names?

P Adwear Bossie.

e And yvow mother?

A, Modes Shawsee. You probably heard of Zephian Shawsee, thal was
her father in Bt. Agatha. That big building there that has gone Lo
pieces on the rosd to 86, fAgatha in Frenchville.

GB. Ohy wow, that is a nice g house.

A. That used to be guite a building. It cost sleven thousand dollars
arnd in those davs that was guite a bit of money.

G For suwre. That is & great big house. Where were vouwr parents
born?

Ao My Father was born there in 8t. Agatha cand oy omother also.

Q. Could yvouw tell me approdimabtely when?
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Fa Hmmma ..

G Well, could vou tell me how old they were when they died?
. My father was 76 when he died in "59.

. 8o, that was back in the 1880's or so.

B, T think it was 1881 o 83 because that was twd vears ago.

i

. And they were both born in B8t. Agatha.  Did they get married in
at. Agathat

A Yes. June 21,1905,

. 5t. Agatha must just have beesn getting settled right around the
time they were born when 5t. Agathas was very, very small.

M. Yes.
(. What was yvouwr father s occupation?
f. Well, in the winter he went into the woods to be & lumber iack.

T the summer time he was a carpenter. He built soms of those barns
that vou still ses in 85t. Agatha. Some of those with double roof.

Farl

0. Those barns together with & connection in betwesn, you mean.
Someons at the University of Maine has done a barn stuwdy and they
determined that those type of barns are only built around here and
around Sherbrook, Guebec. Only two places.

Ga. Ohy really? My father built one on what they call the Caribou
Road when vou go up to 5t Agaths acrosse the road and it is still
standing. He probably built seven or eight.

. Do vow krnow why they woatl o put two barns together l1ike that?

Mo T thought mayvbe you got more room without so ouch pull on the
roont. Tied together better.

G, Most of them are still standing.

f. You don 't ses any of those caved in because they were buill
et ter.

. Smaller barns were bebtter buwilt. Did vowr mother work outside the
Fome?

A Mo
. OFf cowse, with ten children.

f. Mot then, but, in her later years she did when she was in
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Waterville.

B. Oh really!  What did she...

Aa Bhe worked in & cotton mill

G Did yvowr grandparents Live with vouw whan yvou were yvoung?t

f. Yes. When sy grandfather died, I barely remember his. I don't
Erow just when he died. Probably sround 1915, My granfather was
married in 8t. Acluse the eleventh of August, 1873,

1., Sa, that would be in Frenchville? Upper Frenchville?

fe Probably, ves.

G, Araund that time St. Agathsa split from Frenchville and became a
town of its own. And you sald vouw were yvoung when they died, so, you
cloay Tt remember themnm Living with wvou®?

Fe I oremenber oy grandmobher.  Bhe lived here wntil she was 98, so 1
raemember her. She lived with wus for & long time. She remarcied, bthen
when he died she came back to live with us again.

B, Who did she remarry?

A. Elzear Voilisine

. Do ovow remember vowr geat grandparents?

fA. Mo

. Do oyou remember their names or anything?

fAa. I have 1t right here. My great grandfather was Alexy Bossie.

G And do ovouw koow his widfe s nane?

f. Celeste Lelac.

G And do ovou have anyvbhing on where they were born or when?

fA. Isle Det.

i

-,

G That isg in the province of GBuebec. And do vouw know what date?

A They were marrised in 1831,

e Now, vow grandparents, do yvou know when they wers born? Or when?
fA. O omy mothers” or fathers’ side?

G, It cowld be on either.



13

A. My grandfather was married bto Mary Barbeau. They were married in
Gt. Luce in IB7&.  His father marriedRebscoa Ouelette, St. Basile,
Maw Brunswiock.

0. Do ovow have the vear for that?

M. 18EL.

. It is nice to have all that information right at hand, dsn’t it?

A, Ohy ves. I hope to make a permanent record of it

G, For swe. It is very important. You smentioned that vou came to
Stoackholm in 192177

B, The First time was around 1912, because, I had & brother who was
Born in 19173, He was born hers. I haven’'t besen able to find out,
vat, Just when we moved out. Bubt, we lived right down here on Red
Fow., There used Lo be a lot of housss, all red.

G Bo, they called it Red Row.

A, They were company houses.  The company built them.

e Ohy From shingle mill?

A. On this side of the river there was only lumber. Milliken. The
governor was brother to one of those Milikens, here. My father
worked there. He was one of thoss, I don't know what yvou would call
it. He had a pad on his shoulder and he carried these big 8 by 8's.
G. Eight by eight pieces of lumber, vouw mean®™

Fra Yes.,

G, He must have had showlders on him.

A Yes. And strong legs, too.

G. Is the house, where yvou moved here the first time still standing?

M. Mo, it is gones. I think those lots were all fiflby feet wide. ALL
the same partitions in the inside.

., Each house was a duplicate of the other, then?
e Yes.,
G. And they were 11 probably built at the same time.

M And there was four double tenement houses. They were divided in
two and one family in one and one in the other. I've seen these
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houses were they have had four families. Two upstairs and two
downstairs.

. And they were designed for 2 families, but, they had 4 families in
them?

M. Ohy ves. Tt was crowded for ashile.

0. When vou moved back to Stockholm, after vou had been in St. Agatha
For & while, did you stay in the same house?

A Mo, we lived in that little white houss. Py aunt owned that.

B. Tt is off the road that goss off there, kind of across from the
Raptist Chuwoh?

e And we lived there for a while and then moved to my obther uncle s
while my father was bhuilding & house.  We waere living on Lake Btreet.
That house had been torn dosn, too. You know the Sunoco filling
station. It was bevond that.

. Are vow brothers and sisters around here still, or have they
mipved awav?

fe My nearest relative is i Caribow in one of those apartments for
the old. I have two sisters in Floridae and one in Eansas and one
brother in Waterville.

G. Could vou give the names of youwr brothers and sisters and where
they are?

M. EBddie is in Caribou. &L oy brothers and sister s names start
with Ed. My mother liked "Ed", or something. Edna, the oldest, and
Madeline {(the last one, she forgot the "Ed®) and then there is
Georgethe, bubt her middle name is BEdwee. BEdna and Madeline live in
St. Petersbuwg, Florida, Edwina lives up here on the main road from
Caribow.  That big white house on the hill. Georgetbte is in Eansas
and Edgar in Waterville.

. You went to school here in Stockhalm?

. T owent to 8b. Agsths, then Stockholm, then to Caribou.

G, When yvouw went to school here in Btockholm, what school was iL7
Ao T o was the one that buwrnt down. I started school here in the
sixth grade. The furmy part of it is T knew stuff up to the eighth
grade. But, in English that wasn’'t so.

G I ses. Foro St. Agaths vou were ahead in some subiects, bat, yvou
weren 't ahead i English.

A. Bo, I started in the sigth grade in the spring. Im the woods, oy
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father had & camp he was jobbing for the mill. He had to work his

£ & M. I didn't go to school the first winter. In the spring T went
o school for the sisth grade.  Theny, in the fall, they had another
job in ancother place near here, and he used to come and get me every
Friday night. I set some snares and caught some rabbits and came
back on Bunday atternoon and sold the rabbitse and bought some food.
My mobther made some pies and cakes, but, for other stuwff like steabks
and stuff, I lived high.

. So, when vouw went to school in Stockholsm, was it a one room
sohool ?

fo There ware two Classes.
B, One for bthe lower grades and one for the upper grades?

A, There were Sth and é&bth, 7th and 8th, and 3rd and 4th. Bo, thers
we-e two grades per room. '

G, What did vouw study? OF couwrse yvou studied reading, witing, and
arithmetic,

fBa Yes, I liked spelling. I was good at spelling.

. Uh, huh. You wesesd to have spelling bees and things like that?

]

fa Yes. ALL sy kids got the first prize in most of them.
G, You menticned vouwr English wasn 't up a8 mQoh. « -

Ae T o still dasn’t,

Ba Did vou speak much BEnglish when yvou first went there?

A T was & bashful guy. I didr’t talk too much, because I was afraid
that they would Laugh &t me. I had the French acoent.

@, They didn 't laugh abt vow though, did they?

f. Well, no.

&, Becauss vou didn't give them the chance to.

f. Mo, 711 tell yvouw. In math and stuff like that I was pretty good
and of cowrse I kind of liked it becesuse I gob the lessons...and

these Ffriends of ming. ..

., Buwre. You were & little shy about talking becase vou didn’t
speal as much English as the others.

A. To answer guestions, I had second thoughts.

. Did it take you very long after that so vou were fully proficient
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in English?
B. T don’'t think I have ever been fully proficient in English. I
Ly

G. You do well. What was school like? Did vou like school?

. Ohy ves. I loved it. i

f. Do ovow remember yowr colassmates and yvow teachers?

Fa. O, ves.

(. Can you remember some of the names of vow bteachers?

A ore was Adams, the second one was .. 0 can’t remember.
There were so many children they had to put some in the basement of

the Lutheran Chuaroh when T owas in seventh grade. I can’t remember
Mer name.

e Were there any teschers vou particularly 1iked?

A. One I liked very, very muach was NMeal. He came from Danforih.
@, His last mname was MNeal?

f. Yes. Lawrence Mesl. And I odidn’t have the money to buy a class
Fing and he said "I711 lend it to vow”. And he did.

B, Wow!  That is really something. Where did vou atbtend churoch?

A. I Bt. Agatha. For first conmuanion we had to go to catechism for
two wesks, We had to walk, and it was thees niles from whers T
Liwved, One day we didn't go. It was powing cats and dogs.  We
wal ked.  One of the sisters said "What do yvou think vow are made of,

LRl

sugar®™ . "You won 't melt”, she said.

G, After that yvou made swe vouw gobt there wether it was raining or
mol, hube Where did vow atbtend churoch when vouw were in Stockholo?

A. Well, at first the priest came from north Caribou and there was a
hall beside the Filling station.

G & town hall®

Fa T was & movie hall upstairs.  Downstaicrs was the barber shop and
they had pool tables and stuff. There was an oubside stairway. To
go to see the movies, I used bto put the posters up and clean the hall
and couwld go in free.  That way I'd clean the hall and the next day,
Sunday, there would be Church there.

I see. You used to clean the hall Satwrday night to get the hall
ready for Sunday morning. Would vow have a dance there or somebthing
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o Batuwrday?

. Yes, somebimes they had dances there on Satwday, but, the dance
person would take care of that. But, for the movies, I took care of
that.

0. What would they set up an alter and everybhing?

fo Yes., They had a little one over to one side.

B, What would they do for musio?

f. There was an organ there and & little old lady would play the
CH EF & w

. Oh, you had the organ there for the movies, anyway.
A. Yes. You rememeber bthe old silent movies, well, vou probably
l.t "

ol rememben . In most of the western scenes the horses would go
raal fast and they'd play the organ fas

G, Did vou have to go to cetechism when vow were here in Stockholes?
fa Mo I had already been confirmed in 83t. Agatha.

G A when bthe priest visited would he teach cabtechisom to the
vounger children after chwoebh o there wasn'tT any until the chuwrch
was Duilts .

P, Mo I don 't remember any there, then. The church was built in
1927, T think. I came here in 19328, so id wasn’'t that long. Then,
there was & big building right above the post office that they used
for potato bouse. it was & bilg department store. Standard Bupply
they called it. I worked there., Upstailrs, when the priest, Father
Camillon, came from France., He had & cousin they called her
Madamod sal le Prevotat. She was from France, too. She was a
photegrapher.  She went up to the Canadian wilds and took pictures of
everyihing. One time she btook me bto Fort Kent. T owas applving for &
bus boy Job oat the hotel in Fort Benbt. Bhe took me there. She was
talking to this man. I was supposed to be btranslating for bher. She
said something in Frenoch and T osaid "wild forest?.  She said, "Mo,
rest . I gaid "Virgin forest?™ and she said "VYes, that’'s it". But, I
didm 't get the job, though.

G Father Camillom, was he active in the parish?

A. He had a hard timne here. He was transfered in T35, Those were
the worst yvears.

£, During the depression?

A Yes. People were giving ten cents and it was hard to give ten
cents every Bunday. He had a really hard btise and, of cowse, he was
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alod. And it was hard. Bubt, Father Cyr, the one who came neslt was
vounger and fullod ideas.

. Did he organize & lot of organizations?

f. Oh, ves. He had these plavs and parties. We had good times. And
card parties every Bunday, almost. 0Oh, yves, it was really active,
then., This chwoebh was built to buwn coael, T think., Coal was
expensive, so, Father Oy changed it to wood.  We would go out, T .
think it was 1.F. who gave us the fres stumpage. We'd go out in the
spring and cut about 42 cords of hardwood.

&, What would vou have & Frolic? Parish frolic?

A. Yes, all the men. OFf course, in the spring after the mills were
closed, not too many men were working.

#. They would go out and cut the wood and the women would prepare a
lunch and come out and fesd them?

fi. They prepared it and we brought it with us. It's quite a ways Lo
California.

e That must have been & lobt of fune..

Aa And & 1ot of work, too, because we Dried bto do as muach work as we
could so owe wouldn 't be there & long time. Tt would be about a
waek to do it

G, Were marny obher things in the parish done that way for Frolics?
Like cleaning the cemetary and things like that?

fa When they did the cemetary it was all by hand and horse. They
didin’t use & bulldozer.

. The chwroh, was the chweeh built by the people?
A. Mo, that was people from Canada.

. Feople came Ffrom Canads ailt the chuwroh. Were there any frolics
to help build the chuwreh or anything like that or did the people from
Canada do it completel v?

A, Yes, for some reason o anobher.  OF convrse, bthis was suppoased to
have been & growing bown, bub, it was really at it’'s peak. By 1933
there wasn 't anything left here but the hotel. They had probably

started it arownd 25, It was finished 19237 or  28.

G Just in tims. They Ffinished it right before the depression.

M. Yes. Imside vou could still see the steel beams and evervthing.
When Father Auger came, he lowered the ceiling and stuff.
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. I see. It was easier an the people, then. What kind of chwch
organizations were there? Mas there a Enights of Columbus?

A. No, they had L
Children of Mary.

e of  the Sacred Heart, Lesgues of 8t. Anne,

B What did the League of the Sacred Heart do?

Fa They were sponsared by these card partiess.

G, T ses., Was it an organization of just men or was it families?
Ao I mean, The Ladiescf S8t. Anme sponsored card parties. The Bacored
Heart, they were only men. Mostly they went to communion in a

grrodr. That s about all.

G The Ladies of 8t. Anne, did they make & trip to 8t. Arnme de
Beraupre every spring oF anything like thalt?

M. They couldn 't afford it

. This other group was the Children of Maery?

fo They were yvounger, single girls. Like 1% to...they varied in age.
. And what did they do? )

Mo Well, they helped the women and had meetings. They had a
president.

e 1 see. Something to keep together socially.

fa frnd one Sunday was for the Ssored Hesert, one was for the Ladies of
fArmey for the communicon and Children of Mary.

a3
I

8. Was there any organizabion for voung boys?
. Mo

G Who did vou maery?

AL Ly Bagnon

G Where was she from?

. Btockholm?

& And she bad always been here in Stockholm?
fi. SBhe was born in Btoockholm. A nabtive.

. What was the date and place of youwr marrige?



Rl B

A, Beptember 132, 1933,

f. Here in Stockhola?

f. Yes.

G. You don't remember who the witnesses were?

ST -
B, That's all right. Did vow have a honevmoon?

Fa Yes. Me went to Buebed.

. The oity of Guebec or bthe province?

A, Well, 1711 tell vou, my father bad an almost new car, bub, it
started losing oil. Sg, before I got married he gobt a8 new ring seal.
The guy who put the rings in pult them in backwards. Bo, we started

going to Guebec and we started losing oll. I put two guarts of oll
and gas before we left, Then, svery town we went to I put two guarts
of oil in.  We went to 8t. Dernnis.  Is there a place near Gusbec
rnamed St. Dennis?

G, I bhelisve s

A, I think we twned around there because we figuwred we couldn’t
afford it. Those were hard times.

. SBo, yvouw were in bthe province of Buebec, anyway.

M. We were gone three dayvs. We figwed at the rate we werse using oil
wer cotldn 't afford it That summer I bad worked all sunmer for saven
dollars a weesk.

., Beven dellars & week.  And those were probably good wages bacok
ther.

Ae. I was chore boy for Fraser ' s Sporting camp &bt Sguare Labke.

. It is amazing how the difference in money is, isn’t 67
Where did vou live after vouw were married?
N
Ae Well, we lived a month with Thern, we rented a house
for & couwple of years Dy the SBunocoo station. Tt used to be mine.

"~y

. i, that wsed to be vow businegss?

A. T bpought it and started a store thsre.
*

@o Oy, I sese. What Bicd of things did yvou sell in yvow store?

]
i

A 1 started with groceries, gas, oll, and besr after a while.

s
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That ‘s where I made & few dollars.
. Forr suwre. When did yvou move up here to this house?
f. I 742 when I ogobt the post office.

. You were really Lucky to gelt land right next to the church here.
It is really beavtiful land.

A. Fifteen hundred dollars. But, when yvouw think of it, at 7 dollars
a week it takes an awful long time to pay for fiftesn bundired
ol lars.

. You are righlt.

FBa. Tt wasn't like this, either. We did & lot of work to it. I like
ite ITh's & nice place. 'wm oprejudiced about this spobt.

G, O cowrse you'r prejudiced.  When vou put a lot of work inbo it
vl have to like it, right? That is unless vou didn't like the work.

fBa T liked it.
G Can youw give the names of yow children and when they were born?

f. Shirley, September 4, 1934, Jim, August 28, 19358, One was léth
ef October, bubt, she died when she was & vear and & half old in 1934,

2. What was her name?

fAa. Bernice. Then, Roger, dugust 11, 1940, Arnne, Felbvrwary 1, 1943,
Fichard January 12, 1245, And Peter Movember 2%th, 1951,

e How many children did vow have in all?

A. Seven. Bix oare alive.

. That is & big ftamily.

fa We thought so when they were going to school, college, and things.
. For swe. Where do yvow children live now?

A They all live in Stockhols except for Richard., He lives in
Cariboa.

. Do vouw have gquite & few grandohildiren?
A. Twenty-—-fouwr and seven greabt-grandekld lderen.

G Carr youw name youwr grandohildren?

A. The grandchildren, ves. Buat, not the great-grandohildren.
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B, Yes., sol o owou mame bthem all’?

Ao Bruce, Sharon, Conndie, Steve, (Russelll), Brian, Fevin, Brendsa,
Baermice, (Cwitice), and Scoth. That is the Brisetite family. Then
Jim s children are Dennds, Janice, and Douglas. Roger s are Marty
ard Jetf.  Then Timmy, Tammy, Tamara,; Jennifer and Jessica. Richard,
Raginald, Sherey and Karen. arct Chad,. That s it.

-2

fl. That is a lobt. That is very good. oam impressed. Don’t ask me
P

to repeat those. What was vouwr occcupation?  You owned the filling
station and the store.

Aa A T owas postmaster for 34 vears.

e Were you pastmaster when vou owned the store?

A T let go the store because I couwln’t handle the business and being
postmaster. My wife had fow yvoung kids thern and it was hard to keep
store by yvourself.

B. Was the post office in & ssperate bailding or was 1t in youwr home?
fBa Mo, it was in & seperate buillding. When T first started working
there it was across town by the 166 store.  Then, I bought this place
here. I bouwght from Paul Cyr. He comes from Grand Isle.  Have vpu
v heasrod of Besugrstb?

. Moo

A Faul Beasugretthey ussd to call bio. I don 't know why they called
him that.

g, Frobablsy just another nickname.

Aa. His father called him Fagl Beaugret. I don’'t know why. He was
rrother to Father Oy din Cardibouw. What was s name?  But, he's dead
mow.  Anyway, he bhad & store dows by the river were the post office
ig now.  Boy I bowght that and changed it into & post office. Then,
somebody hit the post office. A car ran right thra it. He was on
gdope. He went across the bridge and ram right bheu.

fa When was this?

A In 197E.

G. Then they built the new one?

A. I bBuilt the new one. I orent it to them, the post office. It is
my Boilding.

. Did anvone i yowr family work in the mill?



[

""‘1\"2)““

Be Yes. I worked there for a while.
. What mill was that?

A, That was Atlas Flywood.

G, What did vou do there?

f. T used bto work with the dever 12 houwrs & night. Six thirty to six
thirty. Bix days a week. For $#18.00 a weelk. I was working there and
then FPaul Cyr, the one I bought the place from, he... D went thra high
aschoal , 8o, he needed & clerk. He hired me. Then I worked eleven
houwrs a dav, six bo six, with one how for dinner. O Friday and
Satwrday I worked 14 hows. Twelve dollare a week. then atter two
ar three months he gave me fiftesn dollars, then he gave me eighteen

Bl

dollars. Bub, that is 285 cents an hour.

Ge Really? That is unbelisvable.

fAe. I was glad to have it.

B, You didn’t Like ywowr

at the mill? WKas it & boring Jobt?

A. It was hot. ALl those drvers in the summer time. No, I didn’t
like it., Let’'s face it. odidn't go to school to work in there.

. Especially when vou had & head for business. Did anvone in your
family work in the woods?

A. Ohy ves. My older brother started working in the woods when he
was fiftesn. He used to go with my father. My father had & friend
whia had & son.

G. Bo, vow father worked in the woods, too.
A. In the winter time.

G. I see. And when did they usually leave to go into the woods.

A. Well, when we were in 8t. Agatha, my father used to set owub in the
fall after digging. It wasn't that far. Tt was Sguare Lake. Bul,
e had to wallk and he would come abt Christmas and he would come at

Easter .

B, Then he would come back in bthe spring?

. Then farm in the sdomer?
A, Well, at First, when he was yvouwnger he used to go on the drives.

&, The log drisves?



. Yes.

f. What did he do when be went inbo the woods?

A. HMe cub long lumber and studd like that with & crosgs cul saw. A
cubters saw they called him. Those fell the trees. There was a vard
man. The one with the horses that pulled them into the vacd.  Bub,

there were bwo men with the oross out saw that cut and limbed.

. He must have had good aros working that saw the way they did?

G, Were they going after hard wood or softwood?

A. In SBouare Lake it was really huge lumber. Tt hadn 't been cw for
METTY YERMS. Tt was big studf.

G, A11 wirgin timber. It was pine?

A, T don 't remenber. I krnow they wsed to Ffish on the ice and getl
lake btroub, ocut and fresse somse and bring soms.

. Oh, I ses., So, & lot of the food they had in the woods, they
wotld get Ffrom fishing and hunting right there, probably.

fAe. I odon't really know. But, 1 know paet of the fish they did. Ty
Cross Labke and SBguare lake they would go oub fishing.

Go When they would come out of the woods in the spring what would
happen™ 1 know with oy grandfather they had a special cabin on the
Farm wherse they would stay for a couple of dayve and de-louse
themselves.

A. Is that right.

f. Theyvy never used to do that?

Fra Mo, 1o

G, They never had & problem, then with lice? Thev must have taken
good care of themselves, then?

f. Must be. They may have, bub, he never told me, anyway.
., Did they have any stories they used to tell about when they were
in there? WNas there . anybhing that happened in the woods they used to

tell aboubt that vou particularly remember?

fa Mot too such. My fathesr used to like to tell stories, but, T
cdonn 't remember any of them.



-1 8-
G, He used to tell & lot of stories?
Fa Yes.
. What types of storiss were they about? Were they about the woods?

fi. Mo, they were mostly about the good guy and the bad guy or the big
ore-ayed giant. Anythding like that.

. Did he tell stories abouwlt the devil and things like that?

A. Ol owes. Boary.

G, Did he ever tallk about the ride therough the sky in the canoe?

. Mo

., Lots of stories about the werewoclves and things like thalt?

f. They used to have some about the de Luatin

. The de Ldtin? The little leprachauns. The little people. What
Einds of things would he say they did?

f. Things they would do in the stables. They would pot their horses
W at ndght and the next day in the morndng they would go out and

there wontlad be bhraidse on their tails and manes.

B And all kinds of mischieve.

A. He almost kind of bhelieved thet. He said it and bhe kind of
el ieved it. OFf cowse, it was probably told to his.

G, Did vou ever seg
it happen?

any of the horses or anything? Did yvou ever see

fro Mo, no.  Well, we had some horses when I owas guite voung.  Then we
laft, When we cams back, we didn’'t have any horses.  We had cows,

G, Did he accuse de Lutin of doing any other thirgs around the farm?

fi. I haven 't heard anv.

<
&, Can vow remember any holidave or any celebrations you had when youw
WErE young?

M. Well, wswually Mew Years and Christmas were bthe big davs.

G How did yvou celebrate Christmas?
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fa. Well, sven though we were poor, we always had something for
Chyrdistmas,  Even 4 it was only an apple or orange or something.

. You would have & gift. Did vou open it on Christhnas Eve or on
Christmas Day?

Ao The nest morning.  Santa Clauvs alwave came duwing night and we
never saw him.

@. Did vou go to midnight mass on Chedstoss?

fa O cowrse we lived guite a ways from chwoh. My parents went
unless they had to babysit a bunch of kids &t ow house. And then
the other parents would go to Midnight Mass.

@. Would they have a Reveillon®?

A Oy ves, O, ves.

G, What type of things would happen at the Reveillon?

fAa. I oreally don't know.

G, You never went to the Revelllon? Did vou ever hear them talk
about it o anybhing?

A. Oy ves.  They had fuan. They had & few drinks, told stories, and
=¥=taTu

G It would be kind of like & party, then?

aAY

fr. Yo,

G Bould they sat & meal?
. T don’t know.
G, What would yvou do oon New Yesrs?

f. OF cowse we'd tell sach other happy Mew Yesr. We'd get together

ard pick up more. & whole bunch of people would go from one house to
ancther.

G, Ohy T see. Youw'd go bto yvow nelghbor ‘s and have a party. Then
vou would pick up vowr nedghbor and it would grow.

. Yes.

G Foor person at bthe end of the road, they would have & lot of
pecple bthera.

S. Well, they Just went to those they liked more.  Probably five or
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sin families.
Be 1 wsee. Did yvou ever celebrate Mardi Gras?

fr. They used bto soms. 1 don't remember too much abouwt it, but, that
was a big event, too.

. Just bhefors Lent.
. Yes. EBEven here we had some parbties because Lent was coming.

@, SBao, it was the last chance to do anvihing at all before Lent

started.
A, Right. They had la Micareme, too that they could break.
e What was that called?

fe la Micarems., OF cowrse they had & party then. The voung folks
more s bthan the older. Dances and stuff.

. Had yvouwr dances because vow weraen’t alowsd to dance thro lent at
all?
I

. N

G Bo, vou'd have yvow danoes and sweebts that vou wanted half way
thiit.

fB. That had to last thew the rest of lent.
@. fAnd, of couwrse, Easter was a special day because Lent was over.

fa Yes., A big celebration. Lent was over Satuwrday noon. You could
gat &ll vou wanted.

Ghe Did wvéu used to do Faster water?
fa At chwoh, yvou mean?
&, Bome people used to at dawn, on Baster morning.

A. Ol ves, go to the spring. My father did thatbt. I mnever did.

G, What was bthe proces
waker .

# he had to go thra to do that? To get Esster

A. 1 othink he had to go toe & clear spring. We lived on Main Street
arnd there was one behind the rocks with good drinking water.

G And e would go to the clesr spring on Easter morning just as the
sun was rising and take the water?
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Ao Yes., § don't know if he did it in latervears.
0. What would vou do owith that waber?
A. T don't remember.

(. Did vou ever have special celebrations on the feast of Christ the
Eirng in June®?

A. T almost think it was the lady Fatima. We had a parade from 161
to here. ALl the cars went five miles an how and all the cars
boiling up because it was going so slow. T owas & hobt day.

. Did they have Uthe priests there?
f. Yes.,
G, Were there nuns, also?

f. Mo nuns, but, of course, the alter boys, the Ladies of St. Anne,
the priests from obther parishes.

G Where would the parade start and end?

. It used to start at 1é&1 and end at the church.

G And whern it ended at chwoh wowld there be & mass?
I

A. I odont know iF 1t was a mass, but, it was the Rlessed Sacremenht.

G, 0.k, They wouldespose the Blessed Sacraement. Did people used to
decorate all along the way? Would they put alters up

A Moy, not here. Im 8t. Agathsa we used to have that. I think, Halfs
YA . Is that what they call it? People went from the church, to the
cornvent. T was kind of & Chuwroh de Foute we made. I think they had
heads, here.

G, Would they do a mass oubside or anyihing like that in 8t. Agape?

Aa I don bt know they did. I only went there once. I don’t remember
that.

G, What abowt Fowth of July? Just the same as it is celebrated most
af the time?

M. Yes,

G, Tharnbksgiving? Did vouw ever celebrate Thanksgiving back when yvou
Wer e voung’ '

P, Well, we used to have & feed. Mot parties or anvihing.
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. What about maple sugsar Lime?

. My father had & sugar camp on Fort Hent Roasd. OF cowse T worked
with him hauling the buckests of sap. The smoke would get in youwr
eves in that shack if the wind was in the wong direction. It was
fra.

. Was there any special things vou did in maple sugar btime. Would
wind have parties at the camp?

fe Mo, Bubt, like on a Sunday some of the relatives would come and he
would put this on a snow covered dish, like tea. O something like
that .

G, Tt was almost like carmel.

B. Yes. Maple candy they would call it.
B. MWas it almost like & taffv?

f. Yes.

(. Did vou gather yvouwr syirup and make vou sugear for the whole year?
f. Yes, we had a lot of sugar.

G, Would that sugesrr be used for anyvithing special?

f. Well, I remember we used to use it in owr cabmesl.  That used to
e good,  We would scrape ib.

B You would use & maple sugsr scoraper and sorape it off and put it
o aatmeal ?

. Yes.

G Did vou keepr a lobt of syirup, taffyy, and that btype of thing or was
it just sugar?

A. Just sugar. At first vow can because then itbtuwns to suger IF it
isf 't done just sight.  OF cowse they didm’t have the sguipmegst then
that they have now-a-dave to btest the right temperstwe.  But, we
usad to bhave syrup and stufd like that., My mobher used to make these
fritbters, I think they were called beignets. That is dough mixed up
with eggs and stufd. They would then put it in with that maple syrus.

G Oy rather than boiling it d$n cdl yvouw would boil it in maple
ST

M. Ohby that was good.

G I bet that was good.  Did vou used to do anvihing else special
with the maple svrup?



A. T think that's about it with the maple syrup. Bubt, with plums and
paricales L was good.

G, Were there any businesses around town that vou particularly
rememnber that aren’t here now?

. Well, this one I worked in, Standard Supply and where the museumn
is there used to be a hardware store.

G, You mentionsd something about a department store.

A. That was the Standard Bupply. They had a dried goods in one
gsaction, they had & smeat department, smedicines, groceries, the whole
thirg. TEEVEN .

G What kind of entertainment did vow have when vou were voung?  You
mantioned the movies.

a0 T was guite voung, then. T owas probably fouwrtsen or fiftesn.
After that we used to go to the movies in Caribou about once a weeshk.
O Mary Buwran.

G A group of vouw would get together and go in one car.

Fa. Yes.,

pat}

hy, thalt ‘s right, because the road going to Route 1 was there.
A, I think it was 12 miles there and it was 17 miles bto Van Buren.

8. Bo, vou were abowt halfd way in between. Did vou go to Madawasks
lLake much™

A. Ohlvy ves., The lake was & good place.

. That was Madawashal.ake?

A, Yesh. Three milesthere.

e Were there things like the boy scouts vow could belong bto?
P Mo

G, Did yvou used to have Soirees?

. Well, when I went to school in Caribou I staved there. I worked
For sy room and board. Sy, T owasn't with the kids here.

. When did vouw go to school in Caribou?

e

F. From “27 to "E9. I staved there siy weesks at a time without
coming home. It only cost me a dollar and a guarter round fare.
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Coouldn 't afford...money wasn’'t there.

B. Did vou come hy brain?

fa Yes.,

G What geades were you in when you went to Cariboa?
fo Junior and senior.

. Bo, vou did yvouw freshman and sophmore vears here.
Fa. Yes.

. So, vou graduated from high school which was kind of & rare thing
back then.

fe Well, yvou see, I had & chance to go to Ficker. This guy came to
g@E.  He had seen ey ranks. I othink his name was Bither or somebthing
Yike that. I Ffound out he was one of these Bybhers who bad been &
racent teachers there or somebhing.  Well, anyway, he came over to
sas me at bthe mill and wanted me to go to college. T osaid I couldnt
g, Me said T711 Find vouw work and T ocan get yvou thra for 150
dollars & vear. That was cheap and T wanted to go, bub, my folbks
needed the morney, S0...

. You sust have done real well in school.

A. Trigonometry and solid geomstry T didn’t get too good ranks, bul,
T did better than the obthers.

. You said yvou didn’t ge to scoirees muach, then.

Ay Moy §owasn T t...vou Bnow. .. Then 1 owas eightesn.

g. Do vow remember 1Ff many happensd around here, then?
A, Ohy, ves. Bvery Satuwrdey night they would have them.

e frd what wouwld they do¥ Mostly dance?

o of

f. They 'd have games and dance. Spin the bottle and that ki
stuff.

Ghe O cowrse they were high school kide they plaved those kind of
CGERMES

A, Flaved Post OfFfice. I don't know what that was.
Ga Well, vou smust have know where you were a post master later on.

Digd vow very often have family get togethers were vou would tell
gtories and things like that?



fa. Mot too much. What we used bto do, even before I was married (I
werh ot with her for two vears First) we would meet at her place or
my place and play cards with the folks., Charlemagne.

. I see. Go, vou got bto know ovowr in-laws prebtty well.
g :: ¥ ¥
A, by we enjoved playing cards. Tosbill do. So, we had good btimes,

B. That iz a good ides bhecauses yvou get to like vouwr in-laws that way,
ptulo

fa Yes. I played with my fathegr-in-law and he liked to win. WNe were
pretty lucky.  He'd ask me coms on over.

. That s good. I yvou are winndng that is a great way of getting
thing going with the family, Do vouw ever remember stories that your
parants or grandparents told yvou about any things that happened in
the family or anything like that?

A. I don't remember much. They had & hacd time.  They did what they
cowld for wus, but, they had & hard time. Times were hard.

G, They weare =20 busy making things go that they didn't have tims.

A. Right. My folks hadseven kids. With just my father was working
aricd sal ardes were very low, vou krow. Tt tabes a lob.

@, What did people do in the evening? You didn't have television.
Did vouw have radia?

P. The fFirst radio we had at home, T was the one who bought it. It
was & bDabttery one with & little crystal.

. Before vou bhad radico, what would yvou do?

fi. There was this, not a card gams, it was Finch, I think. The kind
of game where the cards are numbered. Stuwfd like that. Checkers.
There was & game orro? But, I don’'t know what they called it in
Erglieh. Do owoa?

Go. I don't think they had an English name for it

fAi. That is one gams you wolld have & hard time to bealt me at.
o Oy really. Iowould love o learn to play it sometisme.  Would yvow
play it with.a..?
B, Thires lines, r wmmaller. Thres rectangles, one bigger than the
abher . I¥ this was it... M line in the middle going this way and a
Yime in bthe middle going that way., Three on each side. They call it
rowro? Ses?  You take one checker oult, sse. I you sat allthe
checkaers, what can vouw do?

Q
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. 1 see. It was kind of along the idea of checkers. What was, the
gerad?

A, To get the obther guy to not be able to do anything.

. It is the same tvpe of thing as checkers, then. You were tryving
to get all his checkers away from him. Who ever got rid of all the
ather person’s checkers first was the winner.

M. Like i+ in the outside line there was thres there and i+ the obher
arie had beo, there. I wvou had arn open line bhere yvou had ons
checker which could go from one to the obher. They called that

woel fs mowth.  Because, yvou could go from one to the other every bLime
vou moved vou had another.  So, iF yvou could ever make one of those,
wol wele homs fres.
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@agier. Maybe sometime we will do that just showing playing the
ame.  That would be pretty interesting. Did anvone in vow family

H
v dance & Jjig or & reel?
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Mot in my familyg My wife, her father used to dance jigs.
G. Oh really? What was his name?

A, William Gagrnon. Jim Gagnor.

. He used to dance & Jjig and & resl,; too
f. He used to like to dance, wves. My sobther sang in & cholr in Bt.
Agatha when she was & girl. Bhe loved to sing. She was & good

S I .

. Did she ever sing any of the old songs?

fa. She would always be singing, whenever she was cooking or anything.
Ge. Would she sing Jjust the melody or the words?

A. She would sing the words.

G Were they mostly French songs?

fA. Yes. A lob of then were hvons.

., Where she sang in the chwoh, of couwrse a lobt of them were hymans.,
Didg she ever sing svangeline?

f. Noy, I never hesicd her sing that.
&, Did she ever sing any Complaintes? Le Complainte?

. Y., I think she krnew one o btwo of them. There was one here
that died in the tanks

. He died in the what?

fa They had these tanks in the mill to cook the bark so the bark
wotald come of from the hardwood logs.  Acid was in there. They are
atill stending there, the cement form. He fell in there and it
burned him. OF cowse he died two o three days aftter. It hwt him
s0 much that he sang. Desrosier was his name.

. You mean the person who was injured sang?

A, He sang to get the pain away.

G. What did he sing? Did he sing about his pain®

f. Yos.
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. 8o, he sang a Comlainte. Do vouw kEnow of anvone who knows that
BT

. T doubt it.  They claim it's because it huwt so osuch it btook the
pain away were he wasn't thinking about the pain. In those dayvs they
didn’t have pain killers.

G. I have heard of complaintes being witben aboub things Jike that
happening, but, I have never heard of & parson who it had happened to
s=ing it. Hing the pain away. Talbking about making the pain going
apay , was there anvbody around who cowld stop the bleeding? Have vou
avear hesrd of bthat?

A, There was, but, I can’t remember who it was. They claim bthat if
they stopped it too swdden the person would faint.

G, Could vow tell & little bit about how this person wowld go about
this? What would happen i+ & person was bleeding?  What would they
chey?

f. I have never seen it done. Tts just like warts, yvou know.  Bome
pEeple have just gobt it. T can’t remember who it was. I think my
widte had one here on her finger. T think it was & priest, Father
Viosault? He said "That s nobt & wart, that will go away". First
thing youw know she forgot about it and it was gons.

@, Ten't that somebthing? Have vou ever heard any stories about
stopping the hlesding?

\

fA. Yes, there are some people here who used to do that. At , I odon 't
rexmemnlier . I omust be getting older.

~

(. What would vou doy say iFf yvou got cut? Yoo would call the man up
ard tell him vou were bBlesding and what would happen?

fe Tt owoulg stop the blood right up.

2. Just knowing that vou were bleeding would stop the blood?

f. Bhe said that they used to goy, like to the seventh son or
semething like that,... the powsrs. But, there was ong guy here, he
ahill is alive, Boutot, Lomesn Boutob. He could stop the blood.  He
is around Fifty or something like thatb.

G And you say he ds @bill alive?

f. He is living in Caribou.

. Did vou know of anvone, or did anyone in vouwr Family play
instruments?

1. MNera



N

3&

0. Did anyvone play the fiddle or did yvou krnow of anvone who plaved
the fiddlie?

B B

Q. When vow had yvour solrees and things, when people danced, what did
they dance bto?

AL Yes, there were some who glaved the fiddle.
e They would come in?
fia Moe  In bown. Thers were accordians, mostly.

@, Ohy, really. There were accordisns more than fiddles. s there
anvyore around who still plays?

fe There were two that I knew of, but, they sare not around. Gorneaus
and one was a Daigle.

B They are bobh dead now or did they bhoth move away?

A. Mre. Daigle was & Lagaesse and she is in Breenville. She is old.
But, they used to bhave good times. She'd play to beat the band and
they "o danoce.

@B. Did he sver s&y whalt bhe was plaving or did he just play?

. These were women. The womsn were playing.

(e Ohy the women plaved. You didn’t have the men playv.

A. Mo, It was a man, Flowde, that used to play the violin.

G And wase he from here or from Caedboo?

e He lived right here.

G He's no longer around?

A Noy, he is dead.

G. Do oyvow remenber of any remedies for sichkness and thing like that
wend used boe ..

M. Ohvy there wers all kinds for evervibing. There were some vight
vt here that used to go out picking some kind of herbs.

G For different ailments and things 1ike that?

A. Yas.
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G, Were there any in parbicular?
A, Women trouble or something like that.

8. What about i+ & person bad rheumatism o arthritis was there
arnvibhing for that vou remsember?

. There was an aful Lot of different things. To bad, I trv to
think of these things and can’t remember. 1Y have to mark them

N o

. For swe, there are & lot of things. & lobt of supsrstitions and
things.

Ae They worked. & lot of them worked. Oh, ves. Made some btea oubt
of bhem. Boil them and make bea.

o And they would alwaye be things from the woods?

A. Yes. Saome roots that they usd bto dig out. Youw are asking the
WO [T S0 .

ifi
1
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i

G, You mentioned vowr mobber s
wing evangeling?

o sing old songs.  Did she ever

A. Mo
e Did vou ever nesr it sung around here?
Fio The first time I hesrd it sung was in Fort Eent.

G, Ohy really. Did vow used bo return to say 8b. fAgathas,
Fremnchville, or Fort Fernlt very often?

A. Not too ouch. Bat, since I 've been with the Catholic Foresters
for many vears. 1941, At first there were a lot of people in Fort
Faernt T knew. And Frenchville, 8t. Agatha.

G, Laise Labese?, do yvou know LLalse Labhea?

fo Ubim haom

. Did yvou have relatives, do vou still have relatives in 8t., Agatha?
A. Luke Desrosier, he's my cousin.

G, Did yvouw used to visilt yvouwr cousin?

Ae Mot too mouch.  See, when yvou bhad a big family vouw had to stay
arouwnd the houwse and take care of them mostly.

Ao Fore sure. Do ovow have any records of vowr parents or grandparents
Like natuwralization papers or chwob documents? Things like that.
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0. Most of those things
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wotdi o be right with the chwoh.
records and

to look for death records, birth

Te that something vou are working

WERIT . T started one before, but, it didn’t
It was Dubay. He s got information

it
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They were married in

5, I don’'t know what that

Do vouw have very many relatives in Canada

vioul ancestors buried in®?
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. St. Agatha, msostly 8t. Agatha., My father and mother.
. Was vour mother an old-fashionsd coak?
Fa Yeas.
(e Did she cook all the old dishes?
e Yes.
G. What was EQF food 1ibke™
f. Mery good.
G. F course. Did she make plogues? .
Ba Ohy ves.

Gl How did she make her ploguse? Did she mabke it with water or smilk?
Do vouw remnenbier?

A, She had it in a wooden bucket. Zoodan?  Flogus Zoodan.
B. S0 it was like plogues that rose. Tt owould e guite thick, then?

A Yes. She keplt that from day to day and used to same batter.

0. Oh, somsthing like sowdough. You would put & little bBit of 1t in
v el batter and it wowld make them rise beblter.

fie Yes, I think that is what it was.

. Bhe must have made it with water, then. Buckwheat flow, white
flow , salt, probably scda or somebthing like that.

A Yes. My wife mabes it good.

f. and how does yvouwr wife make them? Does she make them with water?

Does she make them bthin or bthicok”

f. The last e she made was with millk. I dom 't kriow. I don 't
follow her coocking. {Tuwrne to wife to ask question). Water, she says
she wses and sometimes bubttermill.

Gla Ohy really. I've never heard of making it with buttermill. 11
have to get her recips before I leave.

A You know the bovs, Roger makes them too.  You met Roger. That
small guy that goes bto the meeting. He's sy son. Wendy and Roger.

. Yesm, I know then.
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And the voungest, Feter, he sakes them. Bub he calls his Mother,
forgets. NMow he is making donubs.

How did vouw eat them? Did vou just pat them with butter and roll

them and eat them like bread?

i

Gha
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thie
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Yo ,

Are there any particwlar meals yvouw wsed to eat them with?

T think with a geod roast with rows potatoss and with gravy with
meal . Tt s nobt real thick. Tt ie & little waterv.

Oh, it's more of a soup btype. & consomne.  LLike au Juice?

Yes. From bthe potato and the beef. It s browd and it is good.
Do vou eat them with beans and things like that very often?
Vary seldom. She likes to make roast.

Do vou ever eat them with molasses or with maple syrup?

T used too. I used too, but, now it's too sweet for me. R Wi
niy how bastes change.

]

For swe. Did vow mobther used to make & lot of pies and sweels?
Yes. Bhe made some.

What kinds of pies would she make?

Faisin.

Raisin was the bhig pie?

w7

Y @2

1

1

Did she ever make torte tiere?

Some. Bubt, not too mach. My wife’ s side doss nore.

Did she mabke torte tier? & lot around Christmas or something?

Ve,

Did she make pot aw pot? O they would probably call it sept pot
und here. Tt was many lavers with many lavers of meat. Many kinds
meal .

Mo

Did she ever make stew?
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fA. Oh, ves.
G, Chicken stew and beef stew?
M. Yes.  fAnd soup.
e What kinds of scup? Vegetable soup®
fa. Fice a lot of times with onion greens.
G, Would she use real rice or would she mabke her own rice with...?

A. Feal rice and I think she put & piece of pork in or something like
that . I dorn’t know. Iive never been a cook.

. Did she ever make creton?

f. Yeas,

. Did she smaske boudin?

f. Yes.

. She used to make all of that hersel$?

fe Yes. First, when we slaughtered the pig, they would gather up all
the bhlood.

G Diﬁ vou ever help her make the bowdin the sausage?

fia Mo

. Were there any special things she made on holidave that you
remember?  Really special things that was & real treat?

Fro Moy, I odon’t remember.  We were s poor family.
G, Well, vow'wve had thousands of meals, so its hard Lo remember.
Were there any special things vouw would have abt special times of the

vear?  Bay when things were in season?

fa T the spring we used to bave dandelions and fiddleheads.  Things
like that.

. Did she ever used to do anything with the
to just cook bthem and eat them like a vegebab

f+iddl eheads obther than
a7
MAe Mo She used to can same for the winter.

G Did she used to do many other things to prepare for the winter?
Make pickles and things like that?
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A. Yes, pickles.

. Can things from the garden?
Fa Yes.

e Where did yvou store food?
A. OF cowrse when they were in jars they kept in the cellar.

., Did vou have a root cellar or a place where yvou kepl carrots,
potatoss, and things 1ike that?

A, No.  They didn’t. Well the last few years. They had a cellar then.
Thern they kept somethings. Potatoes, carrobts, twnips in sawdust.

G, Thaey kept it i sawdust instead of sand. That's interesting.

A. Band is nobt too bad. I've wsed both of them.

. Did they have a garden?

B, Ohy, ves.

B, What types of things did they grow in btheir garden?

A. Cucumbers, onions, letbuce, swiss chard, bests, stuff like that.
., Who kept care of the garden?

A They both wmrk@ﬁ" You couldn‘teee a weed in there. They got up
bieiaht and sarly.

. Did the kids sver help with the weeding?

A, O cowse that's after they were older. While they were working
in Waterville they didm't. They lived there for 12 vears.

8. Was French spoken in vows home?
fa ALY the time.
e A Lot more than English?

f. Mo BErnglish &t &ll.  Even in my home here, when bthe kids went to
sohool , they didn’t talk English.

G So, all the kids speak French, also, then.
¥ 3 i

A. The last one understands anvithing and will say a few words when he
i alone with somsbody.  The funny part of it is when we were living
oy Lakes Strest there were these voung people who moved across frombhe
road from us. They didn’'t know how to speak French and I couldn’t
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tallk English. By the time it was time for them to go to school, mine
brew English and theirs bnew Franoh.

£. They were both speaking both languages?™

fA. Yes. To this day those boys can talk French.

(. What do vou think of yvour French?

Ae T oam glad that I can tall French. Toam happy with it.  You go
somewhere and hear other languages. There was one priest here,

Fat e . he said that vou are as many people as languages. If

there are five languages vouw are five persons bhecaldss you can
commnund cate and think din it.

fe I see. Are there certain bthings yvou think abouwlt only in French
and some things yvou think about only in English?

f. Some people think they have to think din English, but, I can think
in French or English.

. When vou are speaking English vou are thinking in English. When
vor are speaking in French you are thinking in French.

. Yes.

. fAre there certain things vow would think only in English and
certain things vouw would only think of in Frenoh?

fA. OF cowrse there are someg things where 1 don't kEnow the Fraench
Wi ds ., Mew staff that they are coming wp with, vou kEnow?

&. 8o, if vouw are having yvowr car fised, vouw would think of it in
Ernglish, then. Is the French here ditferent fromFort BEent or Van
Buyren?

A, The same. Tt's swprising, yvou go to Buebec and talk French there
arnd so many wordes are different. "
instead of saving VO SayY .

. I see. Do, there a lot of different wayvs of sayving things, but,
vird urnderetand them &l

fe Yes.  Bubt, whern we tallk about. . think we are talking furnny, we
are, according to them. Bubt, vouw can be wwlerstood. That's the best
pairt of it

e Do vou notice, when youw tallk with & person from Fort Eent or Van
Buran, thalt they pronouwnce things differently? I+ & person is
talking in French to yvou, can vouw tell where they are from?

Ao Well, in the post office lumber Jjacks used to come and ask for
somebody who was cutting wood, They were looking for & job. They
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would start tryving to talk English and they couldn't talk English.
T answer in French. When they saw that 1 spoke French, you should
have seen thelyr exupressions. Tt was like the sun coming out.

3

@, Could vou usually tell where they were from by the way they spoke?

Fia bl T couldn’t tell that. But, from the way they were btrying to
say the words, I knew they couldn’t tall English, so, I would start
to talk in French.

. Youw father and mother both spoke Fremch, of couwrse.
A, Yes. My fabther couldn’t tall English.
G. And yowr mother cowld speak some English?

. Bhe knew. She had smore sducation. But, she didn't dare to talk
veary alickh din Lt

e Why didn't she talk to suach?  Was she shy ... 7

AL Well, she was aftraid of making mistakes and that they would laugh
at her.

G, 1 see. Did yvow father spealk any differently from yow mother?
Were there some words yvow father used vowr mother wouldn 't use?

A. He was more of a lumber Jjack type and she resd & lot.

#. Bo, she knew more words in Frenoh?
A, Yes,
B Soy, vouwr mobther had a more refined speach than yvowr father?

Fra YEs.

. Because there is supposed to be, well it is nolt so trueg now, bult,
there was suppesed to be & masculine French and & feminine French.
there was a French the women spoke and there was a French the men
spoke. OF cowrse they understood each other, but, the words were a
Tittle bit different. Did vou notice that in vow house?

fi. Well, T know some words that he wouldn’t use.
G, He wouldn 't use the dainty words.

-

f. Mo. OF cowrse oy Father didn't swear, but, I know some people who
swaar  and bthat de just a way of expressing themselves. They haven 't
got the voocabulary they should have. Bay Mouze. Damn good, yvou kEnow.

e They wouldrn 't say wonderfully nice.  Youw mother asight say that.
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Aa YE5. gﬁ?

G What was it like being Frenmch and speaking Fremch in a town whers
there were a lot of Swedes?

fi. Well, there were also a lot of French., The French stuck together
and the SBwedes stuck together. Bat, in omy grade, I started in sisth,
the French started droppdng out and going into the mills.

G. Oh, I see. The French would go as far a8 sixth grade usually?

e Yes., There were a lot there, but, they started dropping oub,
tsually. I high school yvou didn 't ses very many French Kids.

. 8o, the French started to stick to themselves and the Duwedes
tended to stick to themselves. OF course the Bwedes could speak
Eriglish and the French could spealk English 8o...

Ao Bhat I osay after I got into the first vesr of high school most of
my Friends English or Swedes.

&, Bo, did vou learn to understand any Swedish?
M. @ litble bit. 'im Fine.

Ga Ard do ovow know 4 very many of the Swedish understood much French
or was it abowt the same?

f. Frederick fAnderson, the one that had the store there, he
uriderstood & lot of French about the meat. My father would go over
there and talk to him in French and say what kind of seat he wanted.
He'd say "Yaa". He made ib.

B That's great. So, not too many learned Swedish. EBEvervbody
E o owou were speaking to a Swedish person yvow would
gpeak to them in BErnglish?

A O o ves. & lobt of these ounger swedish boyvs and girls don't know
any SBwedish, anvway. Mach less than the French.

G. Ohy really. Do the vounger French children in ftown know a lot of
French?

Be There are & few families that do. A lot of families don't. It's
too bad.

B, It is too bad.

Mo They can have it in the house for free and learn it essy. When
they are voung it cones easy.

G, Forr swe. Did the French stick togesther socially pretty much?
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2. And the Swedish would stick together socially. Were there very
many coccasions whan everybody would mix and everybody would be

together.

B, T don't know if they would be together, but, they would be in the
same building. Like graduations and stuff like that.

@, I smee. You wouwld have vour own circle of friend who were French
argd wou wouldn 't owvery often. ..

. Mot often. Bub that has changed & lot, because I know my kids had
all kinds of friends.

G. With evervone. Did vou fesl that Stockholm is vouwr town?
A hy, yves., My town. It had its spots, bub... Tt has besn good to

mee and I have enjoved it. Mavbhe I could have done better somewhere
wlae, but.o..

G, You didn't feel like a stranger in Stoockholm?

A. Mo. SBometimes vou feldt kind of rejected. 6t first the French
didrn’t have much to say. They ocubnumbered the Bwedes, but, & lot of
them didn't really go to vote, sg... And the Beedes were mnore
educated. A sajority of the French were laboroars, mill workers,
Tumbrer jacks, stwff like that. Bo, many of them hadn 't gone to school
mch.  So, they weren’ bt going to go. They would say "What is the

rumbar us. " And they oubmanovered the French, becsause, they knew the
Fules. You can't do this and you can’t do thatl.

. Is it sbill thalt way o had it changed?

Ha They carn ™t do that anymore.

. Go, everyone btakes part in that?

AL Oh, ves.

G, What nationality do vow consider vouwrsself?
A. French. With a capital "F".

. With a capital F. Okay. 6&ny particular reason why yvou consides
vl nationality as French?

Me Towas bown French, I otallk French, I live French, I am no doubt a
Fraench.

. Okay. I+ 1 listed the cholces as OGmerican, Canadian, French, o
Acadian, if vou had to make s cholce of those fouw what would vou say



7

was your rabtionaldtby?
A OF cowse § oam American, Firset. I am French-American.
. Okay. bdWhat doss being French mesan Lo you?

M. I have found that being French gets vou to uanderstand so many
more words than just being English.  The same way with Latin. T took

Latin for 4 vesrs. [ learned derivatives. A lob of English is, of

cowrse, derived from latin.  Latin, French, and Spanish. The romance
Languages. There e so many. Ever in England they are over run by
Framnoch.

G, Yes, there sare x lot of French there. S, vou feel vou lesrn more
Erglish by Hnowing...?

. 1 can tell the smeaning of & word much guicker than a lobt of people
carr by knowing these languages because the root of the words.

B, Did vowr parents sver tell vou anybhing abowt being French? Did
they sver try to instill & pride of anvthing like that?

A I Bt. Agatha we were &1l French, vou sees.  Just goss to show what
the French are doing. There was oneg time the Rasmussens moved out of
here NMorth Caribou. They used to have the orusifises in the school.

That oane family had it a&ll taken out. One French family comes Lo a
Bwedish town, of & protestant toown, he won't raise a fuss like that.
They had never heard of it. That just goss Lo show yOW. ..

Ge What would vouw say about that?
A. Well, sven in St. Agatha there was & fellow by the name of Qlsen

there. He didn’t like all the things we were doing. There was guite
a tuss there.

. You say the French people dorn’t usually cause a fuss. They tend to
atlapt.

A Right.

B, Did vow parents ever tell yvou about vowr ancestors or things like
that? Did they ever btell wvou were vou were from or things like that?

fa My mother used to tell us her mother was & daughter of a sea
captain., That is one thing I'wve been trving to find out. She came
From Augusta, and T don’t know how my grandfather met her. I haven't
beern able to find o btrace her. I just traced to fAugusta, that’'s it.

Ge Did they sver tell vou that vow family was from Buebec or
anything like that®?

fBe No.s
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G, O did they ever tallk about France?

G. T dan't think we were Acadian. Owr part mostly belong to Buebec.

G, Did they ever mention anybhing about Guebec?

fAa. Hb. Basille. That is in Mew Brunswiock.

G, That is in 85t. Jobn Malley., That could be Scadians from there.
Did they sver mention anvibhing about Buebec.  About relatives from
thera.

f. Mo

e Were there any prieste or nuns in oyvowr Family?

Ae Mo. Borry to say, none at o all. I ohad heasrd that the wish vou
maces, when vowr had vow icthday, on the same date thalt vou were

bBowrn, like the ninth see, that was 1957, would happern. Bo, I wished

to be & priest.

G. Ohy so yvow smean when you were nine vears old o the ninth. Well,

its not to late.

A. Yes, I think it is. 'm not sorry, though. Tive enjoved my life

as it s
. For suwe. What gemes did vouw play when vou were & child?

Aa T oremenber we used to play ball. The tovs vou had, vou had to
make vouwrssel €.

G Would vow make them vowseld or would vouw father make them.

fro In the mill they had these iron wheels they threw away. Suo, we’d

pick them up make some carbs, push carts. We'd put brakes and
everyibhing on them., There's a lot of hills here, S0..a.

G. Did vou ever play a&any obther games like tag and things like that?
A Ohy swe. We used to have these stilts,

G Did vou make yvouw own sleds and skiis?

f. My father used to make snowshoss and T oused to help. I mads soms,

oo, It was fun. f cowrse he had the frames

did was lace.

and everyvihing. ALl

. Well, that's & Jdob, too.  What kind of shos were they? The ones
that were pointed in back or the ones that were small and round.

f. Foidnted down to nothing in back. The tail.
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G. The bigger ones.

A. Michigan snowshos they call them, I guesss. I've gobt & pair of
those somewhere.

. Where did he learn to mabke those, do vow krnow?

A. T odon’t know, but, he used to take the hides and scrape them, put
some water on them and sorape them and sorapes them. He had a kind of
a thin cup he used bto have in the lumber camps instead of the
chiinawsar they have mostly plates. He had a kndfe to cut an this
Tittle board. He had this little cup and just follow so they would
all be even. He just put on this thing and once he gob going, it
wienald &ll come oult even.

0. And what would bhe use, ash for the frame?

Aa. Yes. Then vou would lace them up. In those days they didn’t have
eglectric drills or anybhing like that. AL by hand. A1l those
little holes.

Ga How did vow cdirill them?
M. I guess he probably had & grevetone. T know he used to heat some
wires or something. Mavbe he used that to make the holes.

G, Find of buwrned his oway thiru.  Did yvouw ever mabke sleds?

f. O, ves. He smade sleds.  He sade chaivrs. He made that chair
there.

G Oh, that's an Acadian chair. Thalt ie an Scadian style chair. ALL
the homemnade rockers. He must have wsed an ade to make some.

A That must be over fifty yvesrs old.

G, It is made in the old way. The way they made it for hundereds and
Mundreds of vears.

f. He used to make the straight ones too, but, he made thoss.

. And there is, of course, the rocking chair. Did vou know how to
gki? Did vou ever shki’?

fa. Yes., T skied somes.
f. Did vou have shki or did yvou use barrel slides?

Ao Well, they used bobs. I odom 't know is yow have ever heard of
them?  They had these flowr barrels with these smooth, planed staves.
Al owe wonld take a piece of longwood about this high or put
goypething to hold it together towards the back end and put this oross
Bow.  We'd sit on there and just ride dows. Tt owas fun. It was real
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. It must have been really slick. You must have gone really fast.
fA. Oy it went fast., It was to hold vou down, ses.  To start out
with & lobt of the yvouwnger kide would put there belly on there. Buly,
if oyouw were really geood, vouw could sit on there.
&, Did vou play cards very much?

fa Bfter T gobt 17 o 18.

Ge Did vouw play charlemagnae?
¥ f Y

Ae Oy ves. Mostly.,  When Father Suger was here we used to play
canasta.

B, Ho, yvou plaved canasta and charlemagne mosbly?

A. Yes. Somsthing like that. We had fun.

G, Ard borro, of cowrse.

fi. Borroa, thalt was more when [ owas youngsr.

G Mas charlenagne sonething yvou plaved in the family?
M. Oy, ves.

G Did vou used to rap on the table?

Aa. Oy, ves and T still do.

G, Did vou have & special tablecloth eo when vow rapped your knuckles

an the table yvouw didn't huwrt yoursel 9

A, Mo Some people have some variations of that. Some won 't say
what trump is in Charlamigrne. They say seven, six, or five. You
have to guess.  Me play that five of hearts and so on.

G, Did yvouwr fabther ever make furnitw e that was in vow house?
Fra Oy ves.
&, He used to make &11 of it7?

fa ALL of ity ves., He was a good carpenter.  More of & rough
carpenter, bhut, for the tools he had, he did good.

v

. What kind of tools did he work with®

A Well, plane, shaver. He used to have these orooked bnives.,  You'd

put vouwr thump right there and it worked like this. It looked to me
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e, Did vou used to do ovouw homework and things in the kitochen?
. After supper, yvou know, yvou had the table to yvouwrself.

G After supper did yvou used o say the rossey?

. 3 Eapecially dwing lent. Dometimes the rest of the vesr we
dich 't say it so often.

G, OFf cowse yvow mobther cooked in the kitochern. Was it used as &
wonk roam thalt often.  IF anvone had a special project to do would
they do it in the kitchen®

A. In the winter time my father would be sitbting right there in the
kitohen., OFf couwrse we had ne obther rooms, but, mayvbe siy rooms with
savvern kids., You didn 't have btoo such room. You dorn't heat that
whole house. I the winter, time we didn’t use the living room.

. Bo, vou would Heat the kitchern in the winter time and, of cowse,
verd cdidn 't need that much hest for the edrooms.

fro Well, ow folks had & bedroos dosnstaicrs and upstairs were the
ather bedrooms.

G Inm the winter time vou would probably work in the kitchen.
fa Like chaires and stufd like., OFf cowse it was heated up.

. You would use it as & work shop and of course it wowld be a2 play
O, Lo,

A. Yes, well, of cowse we were outdoors a lob. Poused to build
bobeled and ice the road and go down on that.

G, Did vowr mobher used to do the laundey in the kitohen?

M. Yes., SBhe'd bring in the tub and put it o a bench.,  They didn't
have a washer then, yvou kBrnow?

2. And she would wash it &ll by hand with a scorub boaed?
A. Yes. 6 frotocier (wash bosrd) .
. Did she usd to wash every day?

A Oy o Once & week.  Well, if there were kids, baby diapers, she
had to wash those more often. Didn’'t buy those ready made.

Ga Did the girlis help with the cooking or did they help take care of
the kids?

Ae Mostly washing the dishes. My mother wanted to do what was
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€. SBhe would put those back on and then would she take them back up
again atter a couple of days when the floors started getting dirty
again’

A. 1 noticed that she left some on. Me had a hardwood Floor, bubt, we
bad no linoleasn o carpet on it

e Did she pult newspaper on the floor sometimes after washing it7?
M. Yes, sometines.
fe Why would she do that?

. T ocdom b Brnow. Just to preserve the olean for oa little longsr, 1
GUEES. T odon 't kEnow why that print wouldn ' t...

., I've seen French people do that evervwhere. Bobth wash the §1ooe

and then pat news papers on ilt. I always wondered why wash the floor
i oyou are going bto cover Lbtoup with newspaper?

fA. Well, I think it keeps it clean longer.

., Mery, very cleanlinesss minded. Very neat.

fi. ¥ Ffind the French are such more proud of there homes than other
preeeal @

E. What about styles and things 1ike bhat?

fe. The French like the Swedes arouwnd here look very good from the
cutside. But, inside, its all klsck sinks and sverything. Some of
them don 't do very much.

L Do owouw think they tend to keep it the old way more?

£ Yes, ves.  Nob convenient.

&, Ardd then the French, vou find them modernizing more?

fi. They try to fix things up right away much sore.  That's oy
personal opinion. §'ve been wong a few times.

There aren’ bt marny Frenchmnen who will admit to be wong, thouagh.
o oyou Find that the French are stvle conscience o fashion
consclence?

I

e Too much. The women are.

2. But, as far as the home goes. € one person gets a stainless
stesl sink, evervone else had to get one?
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20. My wife wants a new kitchen,
shie "1l get it someday.

fa Yes. That is probably bty I
say yorur too fussy, But,
G. Ts there anvihing else

we haver 't mentioned that vou would like to
Conver

5. Mo

e Well,
this.

thark vouw very much. I appreciate vou taking the time to do

fre Youwr e welooms.
G, e

WA

were talking
Father—~in-1aw

abrout snaring.
used bto make?

Did vou tell them abkout the snare

i
i

He used to take & branch of & biroch bwig, twist it, then soak it
birine. SDome type of twig he had he wsed to set thealt up. There
was & log balanced and this little stick was holding and tied to that
branch. When the rabbit ohewsd on this stick, the log fell him dead.
Filled him.

Be The rabbit would chew on the branch wich had been soaked?

A, Tt owas tight.

o hold the twig on there.  And oy father used
to make these row

wmowe wodld go o up the sprding with.  A11 these

dead logs in the spring sticking out of the water. He would make a

notoch and put a trap in the notoh.  He would pat & carrot on a stick
t The muscrat would come oult on the loag and step in the btrap

abyoove L.
and get caught. Some mornings we had 209 suscrats.

. Wow. Were there any obher bthings? Were there obher trapping
ol aces?

T,
that

A, He used bto trap beaver,
Tike the muascrats

i the
the time

But
W E S

srring he o would kind of
when he wasn 't working.

G Uhimy hmm.  What is name?

WlE s

fra Meolili Bossie.
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whierea

Fravver
wendl d
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e

& certain trail
always brap?

he wsed to go by. Certain places

e Yes.

. Did he do such hunting™

A. Ok, yes. Illegal and legal.

B Oh, really? What did he hunt? Did he get moose?

f. Mo, not neose really. But, sometimes the season wasn’'t right. Of
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course we were poor and we needed the meat. Moneg of it was wasted.

. And they would never bobther him for that?
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et

OfF couwrse what he had,
put on his heasd.

e had one of thess gas lights he
He would go oul angd jack.

. Did he ever have any probklem with the wardens?
Aa They never saw him.
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they were building the ohuwroh?
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YEE . ad mass right there. I was an alter bov.

Yo did? You had mass right in his apartment?

Yeres, That was bhefore I in the store.

sbtarted working

Ware there many people who would go to mass bthere.

hy, there were guite & lobt.  About fifteen.

That’'s & lot of people going to daily mass.
fA. Bepecially dwing lent,
probably still do,
maybe they still

vord B In those davs, well
the priest had bto say mass every dav.
Frave Lo

they
I think

Erd
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